
 

 Find out more online:
www.worcestershire.gov.uk

This document can be made available in alternative formats such as large print, an audio recording 
or braille; it can also be emailed as a Microsoft Word attachment. Please contact Scrutiny on 

telephone number 01905 844965 or by emailing scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk

Worcestershire County Council 

 
 

Agenda 
Economy Overview and 
Scrutiny Panel 
 
Wednesday, 7 June 2023, 10.00 am 
Council Chamber, County Hall, Worcester 
 
All County Councillors are invited to attend and participate 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

DISCLOSING INTERESTS 
 

There are now 2 types of interests: 
'Disclosable pecuniary interests' and 'other disclosable interests' 

 
WHAT IS A 'DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTEREST' (DPI)? 
 

• Any employment, office, trade or vocation carried on for profit or gain  
• Sponsorship by a 3rd party of your member or election expenses 
• Any contract for goods, services or works between the Council and you, a firm where 

you are a partner/director, or company in which you hold shares 
• Interests in land in Worcestershire (including licence to occupy for a month or longer) 
• Shares etc (with either a total nominal value above £25,000 or 1% of the total issued 

share capital) in companies with a place of business or land in Worcestershire. 
 

      NB Your DPIs include the interests of your spouse/partner as well as you 
 
WHAT MUST I DO WITH A DPI? 

• Register it within 28 days and  
• Declare it where you have a DPI in a matter at a particular meeting  

- you must not participate and you must withdraw. 
      NB It is a criminal offence to participate in matters in which you have a DPI 
 

WHAT ABOUT 'OTHER DISCLOSABLE INTERESTS'? 
• No need to register them but 
• You must declare them at a particular meeting where: 

  You/your family/person or body with whom you are associated have  
a pecuniary interest in or close connection with the matter under discussion. 

 
WHAT ABOUT MEMBERSHIP OF ANOTHER AUTHORITY OR PUBLIC BODY? 
You will not normally even need to declare this as an interest. The only exception is where the 
conflict of interest is so significant it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest. 
 
DO I HAVE TO WITHDRAW IF I HAVE A DISCLOSABLE INTEREST WHICH ISN'T A DPI? 

Not normally. You must withdraw only if it: 
• affects your pecuniary interests OR  

relates to a planning or regulatory matter 
• AND it is seen as likely to prejudice your judgement of the public interest. 

 
DON'T FORGET 

• If you have a disclosable interest at a meeting you must disclose both its existence 
and nature – 'as noted/recorded' is insufficient    

• Declarations must relate to specific business on the agenda  
- General scattergun declarations are not needed and achieve little 

• Breaches of most of the DPI provisions are now criminal offences which may be 
referred to the police which can on conviction by a court lead to fines up to £5,000 
and disqualification up to 5 years 

•  Formal dispensation in respect of interests can be sought in appropriate cases. 
 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services July 2012       WCC/SPM summary/f 



 

Agenda produced and published by the Assistant Director for Legal and Governance, County Hall, Spetchley 
Road, Worcester WR5 2NP. To obtain further information or hard copies of this agenda please contact 
Emma James/Jo Weston 01905 844965, email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
All the above reports and supporting information can be accessed via the Council's Website     
 
Date of Issue: Tuesday, 30 May 2023 

 
 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
Wednesday, 7 June 2023, 10.00 am, Council Chamber, County 
Hall, Worcester 
 
Membership:  Cllr Matt Dormer (Chairman), Cllr Karen Hanks (Vice Chairman), 

Cllr Mel Allcott, Cllr Martin Allen, Cllr Bob Brookes, Cllr Allah Ditta, 
Cllr Ian Hardiman, Cllr Tony Muir and Cllr Craig Warhurst 
 

Agenda 
 
Item No Subject Page No 

  
1  Apologies and Welcome 

 
 

 
2  Declarations of Interest and of any Party Whip 

 
 

 
3  Public Participation 

Members of the public wishing to take part should notify the Assistant 
Director for Legal and Governance in writing or by e-mail indicating both 
the nature and content of their proposed participation no later than 
9.00am on the working day before the meeting (in this case 6 June 
2023).  Further details are available on the Council's website.  Enquiries 
can also be made through the telephone number/e-mail address listed in 
this agenda and on the website. 
 

 

 
4  Confirmation of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting 

Previously circulated 
 

 

 
5  Worcestershire's Workforce Skills including the Role of Colleges 

(Indicative timing: 10.05 – 11.05am) 
 

1 - 16 

 
6  Work Programme 

(Indicative timing: 11.05 – 11.15am) 
 

17 - 22 

 
NOTES 
 

Webcasting 
 
Members of the Panel are reminded that meetings of the Economy Overview and Scrutiny 
Panel are Webcast on the Internet and will be stored electronically and accessible through the 
Council's Website. Members of the public are informed that if they attend this meeting their 
images and speech may be captured by the recording equipment used for the Webcast and 
may also be stored electronically and accessible through the Council's Website. 

http://www.worcestershire.gov.uk/info/20013/councillors_and_committees


This page is intentionally left blank



       

 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 

 
ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL  
7 JUNE 2023 
 
WORCESTERSHIRE’S WORKFORCE SKILLS INCLUDING  
THE ROLE OF COLLEGES 
 
 
Summary 
 

1. The Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel has requested an overview of 
Worcestershire’s workforce skills including the role of colleges.  
 

2. The Cabinet Member with Responsibility for Economy, Infrastructure and Skills 
and the Assistant Director for Economy have been invited to the meeting to 
respond to any queries the Panel may have. 

 
Background  
 

3. Worcestershire has three Further Education (FE) colleges and one Higher 
Education (HE) University. The further education estate is split over seven sites 
across the county, and whilst generalist in nature to reflect the county’s economic 
needs, where no sector dominates, there is specialist provision developed to 
meet growing need in some sectors.   
 

4. Alongside this, Worcestershire has several Independent Specialist Training 
Providers who focus predominately on both entry to employment for those out of 
work and apprenticeship provision. The county benefits from a well-known and 
supportive Training Provider association who offer a best practice forum and 
discussion group for all providers in the county and also work alongside the Local 
Enterprise Partnership (LEP) and Worcestershire County Council (the Council) to 
support the skills agenda and in particular run the apprenticeship service 
Worcestershire Apprenticeships, whose role it is to promote the benefits of these 
routeways to young people, parents and employers.  
 

5. Two of the county’s most prevalent independent providers are specialist in nature 
and support the high level of engineering in county and the growth in digital skills. 
These providers and their colleagues in FE and HE are part of growth that should 
be seen as instrumental to the county’s success economically. 
 

6. The Council itself is a Learning Provider, providing education to some of the 
county’s most vulnerable adults within areas of low social mobility through its 
Adult Education Budget and Community Learning contracts. Alongside this, the 
Council also holds the Department for Education Multiply contract for 
Worcestershire to upskill residents in Numeracy, worth around £800k a year.  

 
7. Within Worcestershire in general terms, adult education and training 

achievements are concentrated in Health, Public Services & Care and 
Preparation for Life & Work. The former is significantly above the national level 
for Worcestershire in line with employment needs.  

Page 1

AGENDA ITEM 5



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

 
8. Apprenticeship achievements within Worcestershire are concentrated in 

Business, Administration & Law, Health and Care, Public Services and 
Engineering & Manufacturing Technologies, which together account for 74% of all 
achievements in 2021/22. 
 

9. There are high rates of positive destinations from education and training settings, 
particularly into sustained employment (over 6 months) at all qualification levels. 
 

10. The majority of graduates from Worcestershire HE settings remain within the 
West Midlands region after graduating. 

 
The Role of a Further Education College 

 
11. FE Colleges are predominately organisations focused on delivering 16-19 

Education, Apprenticeships, Community and Adult Learning. The Colleges in 
Worcestershire work with employers to understand their needs and are driven by 
demand from students and demand for curriculum. FE colleges will work to meet 
demand where this demand is in volume. Predominately the FE offer in 
Worcestershire is not specialist in nature but is reflective of the economic need in 
the county.  

 
Qualification Levels 
 

12. The profile of qualifications in Worcestershire is similar to the national level, 
which can be seen in the graph below. However, a slightly lower proportion of the 
population have no qualifications or other qualifications and a slightly higher 
proportion have level 2 qualifications.  (All qualifications in England are mapped 
to Levels, Level 2s are GCSE Equivalent to Grade A-C or 4-9 and Level 3s are A 
Levels, Level 4s are HNCs, Level 6s are Degrees)  
 

13. District level data reveals that Bromsgrove has a higher proportion of level 2, 
level 3 and level 4+ qualifications than both the Worcestershire and national 
levels. Malvern Hills has a higher proportion of level 2 and level 4+ qualifications 
than Worcestershire or nationally. Redditch has a higher proportion of no 
qualifications, level 1 qualification, and other qualifications than both 
Worcestershire and England. Worcester exceeds Worcestershire and England for 
level 2 qualification and Wychavon for level 4+ qualification. Wyre Forest has a 
higher proportion of level 1, level 2, level 3 and trade apprenticeships than both 
Worcestershire and the national levels. 
 

Page 2



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

 
 
Education & training achievements within Worcestershire  
 

14. As shown in the graph below, adult education and training achievements within 
Worcestershire are concentrated in Health, Public Services & Care and 
Preparation for Life & Work. Whilst the latter is significantly below national levels, 
the Health, Public Services & Care achievements in Worcestershire are 15 
percentage points above the national level. Additional sectors where 
Worcestershire adult learning achievements are higher than the national level 
include Agriculture, Horticulture & Animal Care, Business Administration & Law, 
Education & Training, and Science & Mathematics. 

 
15. Over the last few years growth in achievements demonstrate a slight increase in 

Engineering (1%) and Health (3%) with less people training in Business 
Administration, again showing growth in areas of economic importance to 
Worcestershire.  

 
 

5%

9%

18% 17%

43%

3%
4%

6%
10%

15% 17%

43%

3%
6%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

30%

35%

40%

45%

50%

No qualifications Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 4+ Trade 
apprenticeships

Other 
qualifications

Worcestershire England

Qualifications of people aged 16-64, 2021

Page 3



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

 
 

16. The graph below shows Apprenticeship achievements by sector subject. 
Achievements within Worcestershire are concentrated in Business, 
Administration & Law, Health, Public Services & Care and Engineering & 
Manufacturing Technologies which together account for 74% of achievements in 
2021/22. 

 
17. These are similar to national levels although Business Administration & Law is 

higher than the national percentage level. Construction, Planning & the Built 
Environment and Education & Training are slightly below national levels. 

 
18. Over the last twelve months, construction training in the County has experienced 

significant challenges with recruitment and retention of tutors, although in 
2022/23 there is little growth, the expectation is that these figures will recover in 
future years, when the demand for sector flattens.  
 

3%
2%

7%
3%
3%
3%

31%
0%

5%
3%

1%
1%

29%
4%
4%

1%

1%
3%

6%
4%

2%
3%

16%
0%

5%
2%

1%
0%

47%
6%

2%
0%

Agriculture, Horticulture and Animal Care
Arts, Media and Publishing

Business, Administration and Law
Construction, Planning and the Built Environment

Education and Training
Engineering and Manufacturing Technologies

Health, Public Services and Care
History, Philosophy and Theology

Information and Communication Technology
Languages, Literature and Culture

Leisure, Travel and Tourism
Not Applicable/ Not Known

Preparation for Life and Work
Retail and Commercial Enterprise

Science and Mathematics
Social Sciences

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35% 40% 45% 50%

Worcesteshire England

Adult education and training achievements by sector subject 
area, 2021/22

Page 4



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

 
 

19. Alongside other training options, the courses offered by HE institutions within 
Worcestershire have an impact on the number of qualifiers within the county with 
subjects Allied to Medicine, Biological Sciences, Social sciences and Education 
scoring above the national average in Worcestershire and again in line with the 
county’s needs around Public Service – as shown in the graph below: 

 

2%
1%

32%
3%

1%
18%

25%
7%

2%
11%

2%
0%

29%
6%

3%
17%

25%
6%

1%
10%

Agriculture, Horticulture and Animal Care
Arts, Media and Publishing

Business, Administration and Law
Construction, Planning and the Built Environment

Education and Training
Engineering and Manufacturing Technologies

Health, Public Services and Care
Information and Communication Technology

Leisure, Travel and Tourism
Retail and Commercial Enterprise

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25% 30% 35%

Worcestershire England

Apprenticeship achievements by sector subject area, 2021/22

0%

18%

12%

5%

0%

0%

0%

0%

0%

2%

0%

1%

16%

2%

7%

1%

1%

29%

0%

1%

3%

0%

2%

10%

4%

4%

0%

1%

2%

2%

6%

5%

2%

1%

10%

6%

18%

4%

3%

8%

1%

2%

7%

1%

Medicine and dentistry

Subjects allied to medicine

Biological and sport sciences

Psychology

Veterinary sciences

Agriculture, food and related studies

Physical sciences

Mathematical sciences

Engineering and technology

Computing

Architecture, building and planning

Geography, earth and environmental studies (natural...

Social sciences

Law

Business and management

Language and area studies

Historical, philosophical and religious studies

Education and teaching

Combined and general studies

Media, journalism and communications

Design, and creative and performing arts

Geography, earth and environmental studies (social...

0% 10% 20% 30%
Worcestershire England

HE Qualifiers by subject, 2020/21

Page 5



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

Workforce Skills and Employers  
 

20. Similar to nationally, the majority of employers provide training to some degree, 
with both off-job and on-job training most often provided, as shown in the graph 
below. The barriers most cited by employers to providing more training are 
understanding of training need, staff time and funding. The most common types 
of employer provided training in Worcestershire are job specific, health & 
safety/first aid and basic induction training for new staff. 

 
21. Worcestershire is currently awaiting the development of the Department for 

Education sponsored Local Skills Improvement Plan produced by the Chamber of 
Commerce to create the direction of travel for skills improvement with 
stakeholders. This plan is in development and has recognised a need for change 
in behaviours across Worcestershire, both with employers and their cultures 
around education and training, with management skills to enable development 
and with more development around individuals’ personal skills to effect change. 
This plan is due to be released in Summer 2023 and will help shape future 
thinking. 

 

 
 
Online vacancies – Driving skills gaps  
 
22. Following the fall in vacancies as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, online job 

adverts increased in Worcestershire, reaching a peak in March 2022. There has 
been a reduction in online job adverts over the last six months, but they remain 
above pre-pandemic level at around 6000 at any one time, as shown in the graph 
below. 

38% 39%

17% 18%

14% 12%

31% 31%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

100%

Worcestershire England

No training On job training only Off-job training only Off-job and on-job training

Employers providing training over past 12 months, 2019

Page 6



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

 
 

23. As shown in the table below, employment growth is forecast to be highest for 
caring personal service occupations, reflecting trends in growth over recent 
years. Secretarial and related occupations are forecast to see the highest decline 
in employment, in contrast to recent trends which have seen growth in this 
occupation over the last five years. Please note these forecasts were produced 
prior to COVID-19. 
 

Sectors with highest forecast growth 
(2017-2027) 

Sectors with lowest forecast growth 
(2017-2027) 

1) Arts and entertainment 1) Rest of manufacturing 
2) Water and sewerage 2) Agriculture 
3) Real estate 3) Food drink and tobacco 
4) Health and social work 4) Finance and insurance 
5) Professional services 5) Public admin. and defence 

 
Funding Mechanisms and the Challenge in Training in Worcestershire 
 
24. Funding in education is a complex landscape and is an inflexible system at times 

Apprenticeships are designed to meet job roles laid out by larger national employers 
that can be challenging for Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) to deliver and 16-
19 mainstream funds and the curriculum is dictated by awarding bodies. Money from 
the Government to FE often focuses around capital and the needs to resource 
curriculum development can be challenging.  
 

25. Funding is also driven by value for money and group sizes meaning demand is 
crucial to support growth in provision. FE colleges listen to employers to make the 
most of their needs and tailor where possible but often that requires employers to 
contribute and this is often where the challenge lies, leading to a poor fit or no 
training taking place. Employer training needs are in the main delivered outside of 
the college systems, using specialist providers of which Worcestershire has many 
small consultant arrangements however there are a limited number of organisations 
whose goal it is to upskill workforces. This is ultimately driven by demand where 

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

25,000

30,000

Jan
-19

Mar-
19

May
-19

Jul-1
9

Se
p-19

Nov-1
9

Jan
-20

Mar-
20

May
-20

Jul-2
0

Se
p-20

Nov-2
0

Jan
-21

Mar-
21

May
-21

Jul-2
1

Se
p-21

Nov-2
1

Jan
-22

Mar-
22

May
-22

Jul-2
2

Se
p-22

Online job adverts (Adzuna)

Page 7



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

employers’ investment in training has decreased and they have been less keen to 
provide support for a number of reasons from lack of finance, time and 
understanding of what they as a business need. 

 
The Business Landscape within Worcestershire  
 
26. Worcestershire has a diverse economy with no single sector dominating. There are 

a number of sectors of high employment sectors such as Health, Manufacturing and 
Retail. The largest occupations in the County are professional, associate 
professional and managers, directors & senior officials.  
 

27. Since 2017, the local labour market has been characterised by relatively high 
employment, but generally lower average wages and productivity. The claimant 
count rate in Worcestershire is below the national rate and is currently levelling out 
after a period of decrease, although there is a slight upward trend in claimants 
amongst young people. 
 

28. Worcestershire has a larger proportion of older population groups than nationally, 
displaying a need to focus on replacement labour and to ensure skills are not lost 
through retirement. 
 

29. It should be noted that although deprivation is generally below average, there are 
pockets of deprivation in urban areas particularly in relation to Education, Skills and 
Training indicators that will impact the overall picture of training and education in 
Worcestershire.  
 

The Business Demography of Worcestershire 
 
30. Across Worcestershire the sectors with the highest levels of employment are health 

(14.3%) manufacturing (11.3%) and retail (9.4%). Worcestershire employment in the 
manufacturing sector is 4 percentage points greater than nationally, whilst the 
professional, scientific & technical sector and the financial & insurance sector both 
have a lower employment percentage in Worcestershire than nationally (-3.3 and -
2.3 percentage points respectively). The two graphs below provide further detail 
about employment by sector in 2021 in Worcestershire and nationally. 
 

31. The District level data indicates that Redditch (21.1%), Wychavon (13.8%) and 
Malvern Hills (12.2%), have higher quotients for manufacturing than both the 
Worcestershire and England average. Malvern Hills (6.1%) and Wychavon (5.2%) 
have higher employment quotients for agriculture, forestry & fishing than both the 
England and Worcestershire average. Other districts reporting higher employment 
quotients than the county and national average include Bromsgrove for health and 
business administration & support services, Worcester for health and education and 
Wyre Forest for transport & storage, wholesale and retail. 

 
32. It should be noted that since 2019, the landscape of businesses has changed in part 

in response to economic shocks such as Covid and other external factors.  Health 
as a sector has grown significantly since 2019, where it was recorded at 12.1% of 
employment whilst manufacturing appears to be experiencing a return to similar 
employment levels to pre pandemic, whereas over 2020 the numbers employed 
shrunk significantly and the sector shrank to 10.8%. 

 

Page 8



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

33. Several sectors traditionally at similar levels for many years appear to be growing 
post pandemic, including wholesale of goods, transport at the same time ICT is 
experiencing considerable growth employing 2.6% in 2019 and now 3.8% in 2021. 

 
34. The hospitality sector has still not recovered to pre pandemic levels, making up 

7.2% of the current landscape as opposed to pre pandemic levels of 8.4%. There 
has also been decline in business administration and support, financial and 
insurance across the board.  

 

 

 
 

2.6%
0.8%

11.3%
4.9%

2.6%
4.9%

9.4%
5.7%

7.2%
3.8%

1.3%
2.3%

6.0%
7.9%

3.0%
7.9%

14.3%
4.5%

Agriculture, forestry & fishing (A)
Mining, quarrying & utilities (B,D and E)

Manufacturing (C)
Construction (F)

Motor trades (Part G)
Wholesale (Part G)

Retail (Part G)
Transport & storage (inc postal) (H)
Accommodation & food services (I)

Information & communication (J)
Financial & insurance (K)

Property (L)
Professional, scientific & technical (M)

Business administration & support services (N)
Public administration & defence (O)

Education (P)
Health (Q)

Arts, entertainment, recreation & other services (R,S,T...

0 10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000

Employment by sector, 2021 - Worcestershire

Number of people

1.3%
1.1%

7.3%
4.9%

1.7%
3.6%

9.0%
5.2%

7.4%
4.5%

3.6%
2.0%

9.3%
8.9%

4.1%
8.5%

13.1%
4.3%

Agriculture, forestry & fishing (A)
Mining, quarrying & utilities (B,D and E)

Manufacturing (C)
Construction (F)

Motor trades (Part G)
Wholesale (Part G)

Retail (Part G)
Transport & storage (inc postal) (H)
Accommodation & food services (I)

Information & communication (J)
Financial & insurance (K)

Property (L)
Professional, scientific & technical (M)

Business administration & support services (N)
Public administration & defence (O)

Education (P)
Health (Q)

Arts, entertainment, recreation & other services (R,S,T...

0 1,000,000 2,000,000 3,000,000 4,000,000

Employment by sector, 2021 - England

Number of people

Page 9



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

35. The two graphs below show that within Worcestershire the largest occupations are 
professional, associate professional and managers, directors & senior officials. 
There are 2% more people employed in process, plant & machine operatives than 
nationally, with those employed in professional occupations being 2% lower than 
nationally. 
 

36. In Worcestershire there has been a significant decline in those working in skilled 
trades, having declined from 15% in 2019 to 8%, which has not been replicated 
nationally.  Alongside this Worcestershire has more individuals in professional 
occupations and less in administrative functions.  Worcestershire has also 
experienced a decline in those working in the care sector over 2021/22, suggesting 
a shortage in skills and available workforce which could cause challenges in a 
county with an aging population.  

 

 

 
 

12%

25%

14%

10%

8%

8%

6%

7%

10%

managers, directors and senior officials

professional occupations

associate professional occupations

administrative and secretarial occupations

skilled trades occupations

caring, leisure and other service occupations

sales and customer service occupations

process, plant and machine operatives

elementary occupations

0 20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000

Employment by occupation, 2021/22 - Worcestershire

Number of people

11%

26%

15%

10%

8%

8%

6%

6%

10%

managers, directors and senior officials

professional occupations

associate professional occupations

administrative and secretarial occupations

skilled trades occupations

caring, leisure and other service occupations

sales and customer service occupations

process, plant and machine operatives

elementary occupations

0 2,000,000 4,000,000 6,000,000 8,000,000

Employment by occupation, 2021/22 - England

Number of people

Page 10



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

37. Enterprises in Worcestershire are very similar in size to the national average 
however at, district level there are some notable differences, which can be seen in 
the graph below. Malvern Hills (91%), Wyre Forest (91%) and Bromsgrove (90%) all 
have a higher proportion of micro enterprises than the Worcestershire average 
(89%). Redditch and Worcester have a higher proportion of small, medium-sized 
and large enterprises than the Worcestershire average, consequently reducing their 
proportion of micro enterprises to below that of the Worcestershire and national 
average. The challenge from a skills and training perspective in small organisations 
is the ability to successfully engage in the volume required to make the numbers 
required to run cost effective training.  
 

 

 
 

89%

90%

9%

9%

1%

2%

Worcestershire

England

50% 55% 60% 65% 70% 75% 80% 85% 90% 95% 100%

Micro (0 to 9) Small (10 to 49) Medium-sized (50 to 249) Large (250+)

Enterprises by employment size band, 2022

90%

91%

86%

87%

89%

91%

8%

7%

10%

10%

9%

8%

1%

1%

3%

2%

1%

1%

0%

0%

1%

1%

0%

0%

Bromsgrove

Malvern Hills

Redditch

Worcester

Wychavon

Wyre Forest

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Micro (0 to 9) Small (10 to 49) Medium-sized (50 to 249) Large (250+)

Worcestershire districts' enterprises by employment size 
band, 2022

Page 11



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

 
The People Demographic of Worcestershire 

 
38. The population profile for Worcestershire shows a higher proportion of people aged 

over 50 than nationally (Worcestershire 43.9%, England 37.8%), which can be seen 
in the graph below. The ageing population means that Worcestershire has a lower 
proportion of working age population than the national level at 59.9% compared with 
the England average of 63.0%. At district level, only Worcester (64.8%) has a higher 
proportion of working age population than the national level. This in itself 
demonstrates the need for businesses to be focused on workforce planning and 
replacement labour and skills to continue productivity. 
 

 
 

39. Unemployment and claimant count peaked in May 2020 in Worcestershire and 
remained high through to April 2021, the beginning of the easing of lockdown 
restrictions, and then fell rapidly following further easing and subsequent removal of 
lockdown restrictions. In summer and autumn 2022 the rate of decrease has slowed 
considerably, almost plateauing. The Worcestershire claimant count rate, 3.1%, 
remains below the national rate, 3.9% but significantly below the 5.1% rate of the 
West Midlands region (April 2023). The graph below shows unemployment claimant 
count from 2020 to 2023. 

17%

4%
5%

12%

18%

21%

23%

19%

5%
6%

14%

19% 19%
18%

0%

5%

10%

15%

20%

25%

Under 16 16-19 20-24 25-34 35-49 50-64 65+

Worcestershire England

Population by age group - 2021 Census

Page 12



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

 
 

40. As set out in the graph below, Levels of deprivation are generally below average, 
although there are some pockets of deprivation, notably in Worcester in relation 
to all domains (education, skills & training, income and employment) but also, in 
Redditch and Wyre Forest in relation to Education, Skills and Training. 

 

 
 
  

5%

0%

4%
4%

15%

0%

5%5%

0%

4%

7%

12%

1%

6%

9%

0%

4%

16%
17%

5%

11%

0%

2%

4%

6%

8%

10%

12%

14%

16%

18%

WORCEST
ERSH

IRE

Bromsgr
ove

Malv
ern Hills

Redditc
h

Worce
ste

r

Wych
av

on

Wyre
 Fo

rest

Income Employment Education, Skills and training

Proportion of neighbourhoods in 10% most deprived nationally - 
Worcestershire

Page 13



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

The Focus of Skills and Workforce Planning in Worcestershire 
 

41. In recent years, the focus of the strategy for the county has been around 
recognising an ageing demographic, both in terms of considering the skills 
replacement needs but also the impact of the demographics propensity to access 
skills development being generally less - which then adds a dynamic to the 
workforce ability to meet changing training needs. The strategy has included 
highlighting the labour market needs to future entrants, enabling curriculum to 
support employer needs, upskilling programmes around workforce and new 
entrant programmes such as apprenticeships and bootcamps. 
 

42. The nature of the business community in Worcestershire being both diverse and 
full of smaller businesses has impacted the ability of stakeholders to engage, but 
also in businesses ability to participate, where SMEs are less likely to have 
training budgets beyond legislative needs and/or any budgets at all. Alongside 
this, there is the challenge of understanding the landscape and how access to 
training is playing a part in how training needs then meet the needs of employers 
and whether the providers’ ability to deliver in a contextualised way works within 
funding rules.  

 
The Role of Worcestershire County Council in Skills and Workforce Skills  
 

43. The Council, working with Worcestershire LEP has a role in the strategy around 
skills, and its role through the Skills and Investment Team is to look at the needs 
of employers both now and in the future. The Team works with stakeholders 
including Further Education to meet those needs.  The Council currently has a 
number of programmes all contributing to the shape of the agenda within the 
county. 
 

44. The Careers and Enterprise Company Programme supported by Worcestershire 
LEP, delivered by the Council, is designed to support education establishments 
post year 7 (age 13) with careers planning for young people, and its aims are to: 

 
• Support more effective careers planning in schools 
• Increase the number of encounters young people have with employers 
• Highlight careers within Worcestershire and its industries to young people 
• Raise aspirations of young people to meet future economic needs 
• Decrease the attrition of young people who leave the county and do not return 
• Reduce the numbers of young people who become NEET and Underemployed 
• Support young people to be ready for the world of work  

 
45. This programme has been in place since 2015 and is one of the exemplars in the 

country, with high levels of employer engagement, work experience and 
encounters with employers across the board.  This programme is funded by Open 
for Business and directly from the Careers and Enterprise Company through 
Worcestershire LEP. 
 

46. Worcestershire Apprenticeships was set up in 2014 to engage more young 
people in apprenticeships and grow the numbers in the county through 
employers. This programme includes a number of annual large-scale events 
including a celebration event, marketing campaigns and schools engagement. 
The programme is currently funded using European Social Funds.  

Page 14



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

 
47. More recently Worcestershire Apprenticeships has launched a £500k Bursary 

fund for young people to incentivise participation in apprenticeships and a new 
streamlined expression of interest for young people to use which aims to act as a 
clearing house for applicants and grow the number of successful apprenticeships 
in the county.  
 

48. Last year the Council signed off a £250k fund through Open for Business 
designed to support providers to meet employer needs and following successful 
bids will offer grants of £30k to providers to support them in adapting curriculum. 
These grants offer support in training, staff time, recruitment and equipment 
designed to ensure providers’ training is better contextualised to employers. 
 

49. Worcestershire LEP has also been successful in gaining a contract to deliver £1m 
of accelerated Bootcamps designed to upskill or reskill residents into careers. 
This programme offers an intensive 16-week training programme in Healthcare, 
Construction, Sustainable Retrofit Techniques, Engineering, Policing and Digital 
pathways to benefit around 300 Worcestershire residents and move them into 
areas of skills shortage and recruitment need in the county. 

 
Issues for the Panel to Consider 
 

50. In considering this report, it should be noted that recent announcements from the 
Government mean the changing of the Skills functions and contracts within the 
LEP with the eventual transition of the function into the Local Authority. As part of 
the discussion the Panel may want to consider the implications of this direction, 
the remit of the Skills function and how this work will be prioritised within the local 
authority moving forward both from a financial and a resource perspective.  

 
Purpose of the meeting 
 

51. The Panel is asked to: 
• consider and comment on the information provided  
• determine whether any further information or scrutiny on a particular topic is 

required; and 
• agree any comments to highlight to the Cabinet Member with Responsibility 

for Economy Infrastructure and Skills 
 
Contact Points 
 
Judy Gibbs / Gary Woodman, Head of Service Skills and Investment / Assistant Director 
of Economy  
Email: jgibbs@worcestershire.gov.uk  / gwoodman2@worcestershire.gov.uk  
 
Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965  
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and 
Governance) the following are background papers relating to the subject matter of this 
report: 

Page 15

mailto:jgibbs@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:gwoodman2@worcestershire.gov.uk
mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk


 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

• Web-link to Local Skills Improvement Plans for Herefordshire & Worcestershire 
Chamber of Commerce  

• Agenda and Minutes of Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 6 October 
202f2 

 
All agendas and minutes are available on the Council's website here. 
 
 

Page 16

https://hwchamber.co.uk/lsip/
https://hwchamber.co.uk/lsip/
http://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieDocHome.aspx?bcr=1


       

 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 

 
ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL  
7 JUNE 2023 
 
WORK PROGRAMME 
 

 
Summary 
 

1. From time to time the Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel (the Panel) will 
review its work programme and consider which issues should be investigated as a 
priority. 

 
Background 
 

2. Worcestershire County Council has a rolling annual Work Programme for Overview 
and Scrutiny.  The 2023/24 Work Programme has been developed by taking into 
account issues still to be completed from 2022/23, the views of Overview and 
Scrutiny Members and other stakeholders and the findings of the budget scrutiny 
process. 
 

3. Suggested issues have been prioritised using scrutiny feasibility criteria in order to 
ensure that topics are selected subjectively and the 'added value' of a review is 
considered right from the beginning. 

 
4. The Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel is responsible for scrutiny of: 

 
• Economy 
• Workforce Skills 
• Strategic Infrastructure 
• Broadband and Communications 

 
5. The scrutiny work programme was discussed by the Overview and Scrutiny 

Performance Board (OSPB) on 28 April and agreed by Council on 18 May 2023. 
 

Dates of 2023 Meetings 
 

• 7 June at 10am 
• 17 July at 10am 
• 5 October at 10am 
• 17 November at 10am 

 
Purpose of the Meeting 
 

6. The Panel is asked to consider the 2023/24 Work Programme and agree 
whether it would like to make any amendments.  The Panel will wish to retain the 
flexibility to take into account any urgent issues which may arise. 

 

Supporting Information 
Appendix 1 - Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel Work Programme 2023/24 

Page 17

AGENDA ITEM 6



 
Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel – 7 June 2023 
 

 

Contact Points 
Emma James / Jo Weston, Overview and Scrutiny Officers, Tel: 01905 844964 / 844965  
Email: scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers 
 
In the opinion of the proper officer (in this case the Assistant Director for Legal and 
Governance), the following are the background papers relating to the subject matter of 
this report: 
 
Agenda for Overview and Scrutiny Performance Board on 28 April 2023  
 
Agenda for Council on 18 May 2023 
 
 

Page 18

mailto:scrutiny@worcestershire.gov.uk
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=5697&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=134&MId=5697&Ver=4
https://worcestershire.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=5622&Ver=4


SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 2023/24 
 

Economy Overview and Scrutiny Panel 
 
 
Date of Meeting 
 

Issue for Scrutiny Date of Last Report 
 

Notes/Follow-up Action 

7 June 2023 Worcestershire’s Workforce Skills including the 
role of Colleges 
 

 Panel Member suggestion June 2022 

17 July 2023 Performance (Q4 January to March) and In-Year 
Budget Monitoring 
 

  

5 October 2023 Performance (Q1 April to June) and In-Year 
Budget Monitoring 
 

  

17 November 2023 Performance (Q2 July to September) and In-Year 
Budget Monitoring 
 

  

January 2024 Scrutiny of 2024/25 Budget 
 

  

March 2024 Performance (Q3 October to December) and In-
Year Budget Monitoring 
 

  

Possible Future 
Items 
 

   

June to October 
2023 

Rail Strategy 
 
 

 Agenda Planning Directorate 
suggestion September 2022 

TBC Strategic Infrastructure, including road and rail 
developments  
 

 Panel Member suggestion June 2022 

TBC Shrub Hill Quarter  
 

 Agenda Planning January 2023 

end of 2023/24 Local Transport Plan 5  Agenda Planning Directorate 
suggestion September 2022 
 

P
age 19



TBC The Council’s position on encouraging the over 
50’s back into the workforce 
 

 TBC 

TBC Worcestershire’s Employment Levels 
 

 Panel Member suggestion June 2022 

TBC Rural Economy and Agriculture, including 
workforce and skills, access to training and 
operating costs 
 

 Panel Member suggestion June 2022 

TBC Worcestershire’s Business Parks, including 
occupancy levels post Covid-19 
 

 Panel Member suggestion June 2022 

TBC Opportunities for Growth, including the available 
space for specific sectors 
 

 Panel Member suggestion June 2022 

TBC Partnership Working, including the role of District 
Councils and the Private Sector 
 

 Panel Member suggestion June 2022 

TBC The levelling up agenda and the impact on 
Worcestershire (including the Towns funding 
allocated to Redditch and Worcester and the 
impact on all main towns in Worcestershire)  
 

 Suggested by OSPB 29 June 2022 

TBC Post Offices/Postal Services in Worcestershire 
 

 Suggested by OSPB 29 June 2022 

TBC County Council processes for scrutinising 
contracts involving County Council funding 
 

 Suggested at the 29 July 2022 Panel 
meeting 

TBC Town Centres  Suggested at the 29 July 2022 Panel 
meeting 
 

TBC following 
further scoping 
 
 

The Council’s assets and how they are managed  Agenda planning February 2023 
 

Standing Items 
 

   

Mar/Jul/Sep/Nov Performance and In-year Budget Monitoring  Quarterly 

P
age 20



 

 
November/January Budget Scrutiny Process 

 
 Annually 

 District Council Economic Challenges and how 
the County Council could help 
 

  

 Broadband Annual Update 
 

  

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Worcestershire's Workforce Skills including the Role of Colleges
	ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
	7 JUNE 2023
	WORCESTERSHIRE’S WORKFORCE SKILLS INCLUDING
	THE ROLE OF COLLEGES
	Summary
	Background
	The Role of a Further Education College
	Qualification Levels
	Education & training achievements within Worcestershire
	Workforce Skills and Employers
	Online vacancies – Driving skills gaps
	Funding Mechanisms and the Challenge in Training in Worcestershire
	The Business Landscape within Worcestershire
	The Business Demography of Worcestershire
	30.	Across Worcestershire the sectors with the highest levels of employment are health (14.3%) manufacturing (11.3%) and retail (9.4%). Worcestershire employment in the manufacturing sector is 4 percentage points greater than nationally, whilst the professional, scientific & technical sector and the financial & insurance sector both have a lower employment percentage in Worcestershire than nationally (-3.3 and -2.3 percentage points respectively). The two graphs below provide further detail about employment by sector in 2021 in Worcestershire and nationally.

	The People Demographic of Worcestershire
	40.	As set out in the graph below, Levels of deprivation are generally below average, although there are some pockets of deprivation, notably in Worcester in relation to all domains (education, skills & training, income and employment) but also, in Redditch and Wyre Forest in relation to Education, Skills and Training.

	The Focus of Skills and Workforce Planning in Worcestershire
	41.	In recent years, the focus of the strategy for the county has been around recognising an ageing demographic, both in terms of considering the skills replacement needs but also the impact of the demographics propensity to access skills development being generally less - which then adds a dynamic to the workforce ability to meet changing training needs. The strategy has included highlighting the labour market needs to future entrants, enabling curriculum to support employer needs, upskilling programmes around workforce and new entrant programmes such as apprenticeships and bootcamps.
	42.	The nature of the business community in Worcestershire being both diverse and full of smaller businesses has impacted the ability of stakeholders to engage, but also in businesses ability to participate, where SMEs are less likely to have training budgets beyond legislative needs and/or any budgets at all. Alongside this, there is the challenge of understanding the landscape and how access to training is playing a part in how training needs then meet the needs of employers and whether the providers’ ability to deliver in a contextualised way works within funding rules.
	The Role of Worcestershire County Council in Skills and Workforce Skills
	Issues for the Panel to Consider
	50.	In considering this report, it should be noted that recent announcements from the Government mean the changing of the Skills functions and contracts within the LEP with the eventual transition of the function into the Local Authority. As part of the discussion the Panel may want to consider the implications of this direction, the remit of the Skills function and how this work will be prioritised within the local authority moving forward both from a financial and a resource perspective.
	Purpose of the meeting
	Contact Points
	Background Papers



	6 Work Programme
	ECONOMY OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
	7 JUNE 2023
	WORK PROGRAMME
	Summary
	Background
	Dates of 2023 Meetings
	Purpose of the Meeting
	Supporting Information
	Contact Points
	Background Papers


	Item 6 App 1 Latest Work Programme


